
 
 
 

  
                   

    

 
    

TOWN COUNCIL 
MEETING MINUTES 
SEPTEMBER 1, 2009 

Mic
Gina M

F

 
CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE TO THE FLAG.  The Chairman, Michael Bowie, c
order and led the pledge of allegiance to the flag at 7:00 PM. 
  
ROLL CALL.  Members present were Councilors Wells, Bowie, Mason, Crafts
and Cote.  Also present were Stephen Eldridge, Town Manager; P. Sean Gali
Code Enforcement Officer; Cathy Ricker, Finance Director; Ryan Leighton, T
Green, School Superintendent; Prudence Grant, School Committee Chair; Lor
Advisory Board Member; John Wierzbicki, Budget Advisory Board Member; Ri
Advisory Board Member; Donald Fellows, Budget Advisory Board Member; an
citizens in the audience.   
 

PUBLIC HEARING - NONE 
CONSENT AGENDA  

 
VOTE (2009-125) Councilor Wells, seconded by Councilor Larochelle mov
Minutes of July 21, 2009 and August 4, 2009, and a CMP Pole Permit fo
Order passed – Vote 7-0. 
 
 

COUNCIL ORDERS, RESOLUTIONS & ORDINAN
 

TRAIL PROJECT REFERENDUM 
 
 

Mr. Leighton said Lisbon had received a letter that we had been awarded the en
we need to figure out a way to raise our $320,000 match.  The important thing
money is going to be spent in Maine in some community. MDOT chose Lisbon t
It’s not for roads; it’s for these types of trail projects.  They are transportation 
As part of our application process the Council had said, at that time, that t
funding the match if necessary depending upon what we were awarded.  We ar
to the voters in November with a clear understanding about what the details a
and hopefully be able to convince the community that’s it’s a worthwhile
community so they approve the $320,000 bond.  We are asking that you put th
the ballot for November 2009 for Lisbon to raise its match.  He said once this
have a four mile trial network that will stretch from the sidewalk network in Lis
network in Lisbon Falls and it will connect both ends of town for safe w
Alternative transportation means anything other than vehicles.  This will open u
scenic opportunities to access to the Androscoggin River. 
 
Councilor Cote said last year we had to make a lot of budget cuts and one of the
was the schools.  I can’t see granting a $320,000 bond when our schools are in d
don’t think it is going to fair with this community and to go through th
community has already said no to it once is a waste of time. Is it something the
have, absolutely, but I don’t think we can afford it at this time. 
 

hael Bowie, Chair At Large 2009  
ason, Vice Chair District 1 2010 

ern Larochelle, Jr., At Large 2010 
Roger Cote, At Large 2011 

Janet Henry, District 1 2009 
Dale Crafts, District 2 2010 

Norma Wells, District 2 2009 
alled the meeting to 

, Henry, Larochelle 
peau; Michael Cote, 
own Engineer; Rick 
i Pomelow, Budget 
chard Main, Budget 
d approximately 45 

ed to approve the 
r the Gould Road.  

CES 

tire amount so now 
 to know is that this 
o spend this money.  
enhancement funds.  
hey would support 
e hoping to go back 
re about this project 
 investment in our 
is question back on 

 is done Lisbon will 
bon to the sidewalk 
alking and biking.  
p a number of very 

 main things we cut 
ire need of repair.  I 
is again when the 
 town would like to 



Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 2 September 1, 2009 

Latest Revision as of 9/11/2009 4:11:12 PM 

 
Councilor Henry said I think the exact opposite.  I think this is a vision that people cherish.  We are 
going to be receiving $1.2 million for our small investment of $320,000 which means we can hire 
people and that local businesses will receive the fruit of this and I just think this is looking forward.  
I don’t know the ratio, but $320,000 to $1.2 million means we are getting an awful lot for our money.  
I would encourage our voters to really take a look at this.  Hopefully, they will look at this with a 
keen eye and new vision for the future.   
 
Councilor Crafts said it would be an injustice, with this type of match, to not take it to the voters.  
They can say yes or no, but at least put it out to them.   
 
Councilor Wells said I agree with Councilor Henry and Crafts.  I think we need to put this before 
the people.  I drive by the boat ramp every day on my way to and from home and tonight I noticed 
that there wasn’t a single open parking space so that tells you how much our trails are used.  I think 
we need to let our residents decide whether to spend $320,000 of their taxpayer money for this 
project.   
 
Councilor Mason said I agree.  She said for the money we are getting we have to put this out to our 
people.  We have to try for this.  Several times other communities have looked to Lisbon as their 
model because we have such a nice trail already.  We have a river that we need to extract revenue 
from if we use it wisely and part of that would be using this trail system and having maybe boat 
launches and things like that along the trail.  It would be crazy for us not to put this before the 
public.   
 
Councilor Henry said I saw an American Eagle and said to myself, boy would I love to see that 
closer, but I can’t.  Now, if there had been a walkway that way I could have observed. 
 
Councilor Bowie said I also agree and think it will help our downtown revitalization so that would 
be a good step forward if the voters approve that. 
 
A. Noyes Lawrence, Trail Committee member, said if your home is assessed for $100,000 your cost 
would be less than $2.00 per year.  When the state came down and looked at this trail they said it 
was one of the most beautiful trails in the State of Maine within the confines of the town.  We have 
worked very hard for this trail and your Trail Committee is one of the most active committees in the 
town.  We meet every month.  We are always there, even when Mr. Leighton is not there.   These 
four miles of the Androscoggin River Trail will be the completion of the whole system.  We have a 
lot of walkers that come up here from the Brunswick Trails because they like the woods effect.  It’s 
the only trail in the State of Maine that has access to two rivers.  It’s a gem and we have worked very 
hard to get this far. 
 
Councilor Bowie said we will need a motion to move this forward and put this on the ballot for this 
November. 
 
VOTE (2009-126A) Councilor Wells, seconded by Councilor Crafts moved to place the Trail 
Project Referendum Question on the November 3, 2009 ballot.  Order passed – Vote 6-1.  (Against: 
Cote) 
 

ANDROSCOGGIN LAND TRUST MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MOU) 
 

Mr. Eldridge said we talked back in the Spring about this Island that sits next to Wagg Island.  This 
Council agreed that they would like to hand this over to the Androscoggin Land Trust and we put 
together a memorandum of understanding.  Their board reviewed it and made some comments.  
Mr. Labonte is here to answer questions.   Councilor Wells said I didn’t find any issues with it.   

 
Janet Henry left the room at 7:12 PM. 



Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 3 September 1, 2009 

Latest Revision as of 9/11/2009 4:11:12 PM 

 
Councilor Larochelle said did you make some changes to it.  Mr. Eldridge said the only changes I 
see that were made upon Mr. Labonte’s recommendations is taking more of the control out of town 
and leaving it with the Androscoggin Land Trust and having the Conservation Committee weigh in, 
in an advisory capacity and I think we had talked about that during one of our meetings.  It, also, 
references our Economic Development and Recreation Directors as part of this group.  I’ve spoken 
to Mr. Stevens and he said he really likes this program.   
 
Councilor Larochelle pointed out this agreement is for twenty-four months.  Councilor Bowie said it 
can be renewed or revisited at any time.  It actually says it should be reviewed annually.   
 
Mr. Labonte said the twenty-four months were to allow us enough time to convene meetings to hold 
discussions to help the town draft that short term and long term strategic plan.  It will take time to 
develop that one small piece of how recreation and conservation along the river may help the town 
meet its economic goals.  The intent really of the MOU is to help us get to that finish line and then 
any plan that we draft would guide any future decision making.   

 
VOTE (2009-126B) Councilor Mason, seconded by Councilor Cote moved to adopt the 
Androscoggin Land Trust Memorandum of Understanding between the Town of Lisbon and the 
Androscoggin Land Trust with changes (see attached).  Order passed – Vote 6-0.   
 

Janet Henry returned at 7:17 PM. 
 

VILLAGE STREET DEMOLITION 
 

Councilor Bowie said you have in front of you a Demolition Order that says this has been a 
dangerous building issue since 2005 and we have had four engineering reviews of this building.  We 
apparently own this property for a lien that matured.  There is liability dealing with this structure.  
The last engineering review was held in 2009 and still identifies this as a dangerous building and I 
believe it’s our obligation to take the necessary action to protect the town and citizens.  This order is 
before us and we need to act on it. 
 
Councilor Wells said since 2006 has the owner of the property attempted to pay any of these back 
taxes.  Mr. Eldridge said no.  Councilor Wells said so taxes remain unpaid since 2006.  That’s correct.   
  
Councilor Cote said I have a memo here that says back in 2001 this property first came to our 
attention as a potential junkyard.  How did this go from a potential junkyard to an unsafe building? 
 
Councilor Bowie said I believe there was a lot of debris around the facility at the time when Code 
Enforcement got involved the first time and it was deferred to our attorneys.  Code Enforcement 
took that action and then the debris was removed and the building continued to deteriorate.  It 
turned into a dangerous building issue requiring the Code Enforcement Officer to get involved.   
 
Councilor Cote said what really bothers me about this whole episode is that this land is adjacent to 
the Fire Station and at one time there was a street that ran along side of the Fire Station.  Now you 
have added an addition to the Fire Station where the street was.  Was that street ever discontinued, 
Western Avenue.  Councilor Bowie said I don’t know.   Councilor Cote said the reason I that I bring 
these things up is that because this street was never discontinued, we built the building on the 
street.  I don’t see how we can do that and another thing is if the street was discontinued then the 
land adjacent to it would have been brought closer to the Fire Station because the land would resort 
back to the owners.  If the particular building was on Pinewoods Road or elsewhere would we be 
going after this gentleman to get rid of the building or are we doing it because of somebody’s wrong 
moves in the past.  I just want that to be put on the record so people understand that this is 



Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 4 September 1, 2009 

Latest Revision as of 9/11/2009 4:11:12 PM 

something I have had brought to my attention over the last few weeks.  I would like to have that 
answered because it was asked of me as a Councilor.   
 
Councilor Bowie said I am not sure that we are going after any specific individual.  This was 
brought to us by Code Enforcement.  I don’t think it matters where the property is, if Code 
Enforcement deems it is a dangerous building then we have to deal with it.  It doesn’t matter where 
it is located the Code Enforcement Officer brought this to the then Selectmen as a dangerous 
building and we have been dealing with this issue for a number of years.  The property adjacent to it 
would grab half of the road.   
 
Councilor Crafts said that’s a completely different issue.  Councilor Cote said what I’m saying 
Councilor Crafts is that are we going around the back door to eliminate this property because of 
somebody’s wrong doing in the past.  Councilor Crafts said no that’s a separate issue and it has 
nothing to do with what we are dealing with tonight.   
 
Councilor Wells said the Town Clerk seems to remember that Western Avenue has been 
discontinued.   Councilor Cote said I’ve already checked and it was never discontinued.  Councilor 
Wells said then why are you asking?  Councilor Cote said I want it brought to light the fact that that 
road was never discontinued and that creates a problem.  Maybe they are using this as a way to 
eliminate the problem.  I don’t know if it’s a conspiracy or just bad dealings.   
 
Councilor Larochelle said let me just make sure I know what we are dealing with tonight, which is 
the liability of this building since the town took ownership of this so it’s not a second or third party, 
it’s basically that we are reacting as a Council on a possible liability issue over a problem that we 
have addressed and made mention of that it’s a safety hazard now that it’s actually owned by the 
town so we are looking at a demolition of something that is owned by the town.   
 
Councilor Wells said Mr. Thiboutot has 30 days to appeal if he chooses to.  Councilor Wells said 
even though we own it.  Councilor Bowie said correct, he has the right to appeal to see that we have 
done everything appropriately.   
 
Councilor Henry said are all the “I’s dotted and the “T’s” crossed?  Councilor Bowie said to the best 
of my knowledge I believe we have done everything appropriately and followed the due diligence 
process in going through this effort with a dangerous building that put it in this light so I would 
entertain a motion.   
 
VOTE (2009-127) Councilor Wells, seconded by Councilor Crafts moved to adopt the Order for 
Demolition (see attached).  
 
Councilor Larochelle pointed out the town’s liability at this time and the 30 day process after this 
vote. 
 
Mr. Thiboutot said first off, on Main Street there is a church that is jacked up and you can walk 
underneath and there is no fence around any of these properties.  You have other open foundations 
in this town, buildings with bad sill plates everywhere, and I don’t understand why you keep 
coming after this building.  Also, I put in a notice of dispute on this bill that you had sent me in 2008 
for the sum of $9,000 for engineering and attorney’s fees that you had acquired from all of this.  I 
had contacted the engineer that you had hired and he said he only charged $400.  In the newspaper 
Mr. Lunt, he was the Town Manager then, stated it was about $200 and it went from $200 to $9,000 
and I dispute this bill and I did not get any information back from anybody here.  
 
Mr. Eldridge said you have been sent in the past invoices from the Town Manager’s office, which 
included legal fees and engineering studies.  I don’t have an itemized listing with me here tonight, 
but from what I understand our attorney is telling us is that everything was done properly and you 
have refused to pay that so the lien process has matured and we own the building.   



Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 5 September 1, 2009 

Latest Revision as of 9/11/2009 4:11:12 PM 

 
Mr. Thiboutot said I did not say I wouldn’t pay anything.  I asked you personally for an itemized 
bill and you have not given me anything.  I have asked you over and over for something that will 
tell me why I have to pay $9,000 for an engineer that’s $400.  That should have been $1,600 for four 
times and I don’t know how it got to $9,000 and this is why I’ve been asking you all along so I know 
what I have to pay and this town will not give me an answer.  I want an answer because you are 
taking my house for this reason.   
 
Mr. Eldridge said you have on your tax bill a properly liened amount of money that was due and 
you have not chosen to pay it and you were given the information prior to me being here.  You have 
asked me for a copy of the study the engineer did since I’ve been here and you have a copy of that.  I 
do not recall seeing a request for an itemized bill.  Mr. Thiboutot said I’ve been asking ever since 
2008 and I’ve sent you notice of disputes about this bill and nobody’s returned anything and yet you 
are taking my home for this.  You say it’s a dangerous building.  If anybody drives around this town 
anywhere, you have a church sitting 6’ up in the air and he has no fence around it and this is what 
you are basing all this on, is a fence.  That engineer that you hired, it states right in his papers that 
he could not enter that building in January and you are sitting here telling me that kids are crawling 
in and out of it.  You are going to take my building.  This has been going on since day one since you 
guys started coming after me about this building.  I just want some answers.   
 
Mr. Eldridge said as far as I know, from day one when you have asked questions from this town, 
you have been given that information.  You have been given information about why there is a dollar 
amount on top of your regular tax bill, which we are legally able to lien that property and put that 
on there because we incurred costs back in 2005 and you should pay it.  Mr. Thiboutot said I asked 
for an itemized bill to find out why it’s $9,000.   
 
Mr. Eldridge I don’t think its $9,000, and pointed out that this bill was $6,182.50, and that was 
applied April 7, 2006.  Let me read this and this was sent to you in April 2006.  Mr. Eldridge read the 
following letter into the record: 
 

On March 9th I wrote to you enclosing a bill for $412.38 for engineering inspections at 
39 Village Street.  I have not heard from you or received payment.  My understanding, 
verified by a video tape, is that you agreed to pay for this expense.  We had additional 
and related costs and expenses.  The taxpayers of Lisbon should not have to be 
responsible for costs to enforce dangerous building orders.  I enclose a bill for 
$6,182.52.  This includes our reasonable attorney fees, which is required to appeal the 
arguments in Superior Court and three inspections including reports by the engineer.  
The $412.38 is included in this total bill.  Please make arrangements to pay this bill 
within 30 days.  Call me if you would like to discuss this bill.  This was signed by the 
Town Manager and the last sentence reads:  Failure to pay this will result in further 
action as we are entitled to recover expenses under Title 17 Section 2853 and may file a 
tax lien or civil action if necessary.   

 
Mr. Eldridge said so that pretty much explains back in 2006 what you asked for.   
 
Mr. Thiboutot said let me straighten this out.  I never said I would pay for the engineer that you 
hired.  Never and I would like to see this tape.  If I was to hire somebody, I would have hired 
somebody on my own.  And, if you can’t produce that tape, then I would like to table this until you 
can produce it.   I have never said nothing of the sort.  I have asked this town over and over, you are 
taking my home for something like this.  Ain’t this supposed to be America. 
 
Councilor Crafts said did you pay the minimum tax without any of the fees added on to it.  Mr. 
Thiboutot said yes, they have been paid.   Councilor Crafts said and this is additional on top of his 
regular tax.  Councilor Bowie said yes it is.  Mr. Thiboutot said I asked for an itemized bill because 
of this it was $9,000 because I wanted to know what my taxes were going to be.  I want to know why 



Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 6 September 1, 2009 

Latest Revision as of 9/11/2009 4:11:12 PM 

I am being charged this amount of money.  Mr. Eldridge said this looks like an itemized bill to me 
and you received it in April of 2006; legal fees and engineering studies for a total of $6,182.52.  Mr. 
Thiboutot said what are you talking about for legal fees.  Councilor Henry said he is asking for an 
itemized bill.   
 
Mr. Thiboutot said we have never gone to court and I can’t see $5,000 for legal fees when nothing 
has ever; where is this coming from is what I want to know.  If I am going to pay something like this 
I want to know what I am paying for.  You hired an engineer that says in January that the building 
was never sat down on its foundation in 2006 and lag bolted and I’m going to pay for that and you 
know it doesn’t make sense.  It’s just like you guys are building up this cost to make me fail at 
what’s going on and I’m tired.  Ain’t we all supposed to be treated equally here, he asked.   
 
Councilor Bowie said we have an order in front of us here and there is an appeal process that can 
take place through this and I think we need to act on this order and move forward.  Councilor Cote 
said I think the people ought to have an opportunity to speak.  Councilor Bowie said I have given 
Mr. Thiboutot opportunity to speak.   
 
Andrea Murrillo said I would like to speak.  Councilor Bowie said are you a resident of the Town of 
Lisbon.  Ms. Murillo said I was and I owned that house.  I am the heir you are charging the sewer 
lien to.  He is not an heir and has never been an heir.  I was the only heir and you are still charging 
me a bill from the sewer.  You call that right, she asked.  I am not the owner of that house.  There is 
more to this story and it needs to be straightened out.  Mr. Thiboutot said she knows about the 
history and the dealings with the town about this building.   There are issues about the water 
problems and the snow that’s been plowed up against the house.  We have pictures of all of this 
stuff.  This has been an ongoing thing, and then you are telling me that I have some dangerous 
building when it’s been caused by this town.  When you originally built that parking lot beside my 
property you entrapped water onto my property, which then caused the sill plates to go.   
 
Councilor Bowie said I don’t want to rehash everything that we have already had happened since 
2004.  We have an order in front of us and we have an appeal process that you can go through to 
address this.   
 
Michelle Turmelle said that could cost us more money.  Wouldn’t it be good to listen to the people 
now rather than pay later?   
 
Councilor Bowie said we have been dealing with this since 2004.  Mrs. Turmelle said it’s been put 
out to the public in a public forum right now and you should listen because it could cost us more 
money.  Councilor Bowie said I will limit everyone to two minutes to speak that would like to speak 
and when your two minutes is up I am going to ask you to sit down.  Mr. Thiboutot said, well, I am 
still not done.  Councilor Bowie said your two minutes is up.  Mr. Thiboutot said this is my home 
you are talking about here and I am still not done and I would like to know why I can’t get any 
response from anybody in this town.   
 
Councilor Bowie said we have just answered those questions for you.  
 
Leon Bard said I am a resident of this town and I am also a part of the Thiboutot family.  I have 
taken it upon myself to do a little research on what’s going on here.  I don’t know if you understand 
or not, but a lot of times when you get a gut feeling that something isn’t right, usually it turns out to 
be true.  I think what Councilor Cote said earlier has a lot to do with what’s going on here because I 
went up with a tape measure myself.  Right now that Fire Station is in violation of your set back 
requirements and it probably was in 1986, too.  So then comes the question as to whether or not 
Western Avenue has been discontinued or not.  Apparently, it isn’t and does that mean I can drive 
down Village Street, veer off down what used to be Western Avenue and run into your Fire Station 
and then turn around and sue the town for parking a building in the middle of the street.   If it is 
discontinued, then your set back reduces even more than it is right now.  The best thing here is to 



Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 7 September 1, 2009 

Latest Revision as of 9/11/2009 4:11:12 PM 

stop these shenanigans, sit down and negotiate with Reggie, pay him a fair agreement, and settle 
this issue.  The town apparently wants the property.  I think Reggie would be willing to talk and 
let’s put this thing to rest because you probably don’t have all you’re “T’s” crossed and your “I’s” 
dotted.  If you don’t work fairly with him, I will put my effort in and work with him.  If you want 
my resume, you can look it up.  That’s my opinion.  I think you people need to sit down and look at 
what’s going on here.  My gut feeling says that this is all about hiding what wasn’t done properly 
year’s ago.  I don’t know if I’m over my two minutes or not, but I guess I’ve said just about what I 
meant to say.  Thank you. 
 
Andrea Murrillo said I am the previous owner, the heir of that residence; I inherited it from Richard 
Leavitt.  It has always been a problem.  It has been picked out from all other places and snow has 
been pushed up against that building to the point of water damage.  Three truck loads of snow were 
taken away from that door.  We are not out to hurt anybody and we are not out to sue the town, but 
if we have to, we have to.  Right is right and wrong is wrong and if you caused the problem to that 
building, then you should fix it, not us.   I don’t want any more sewer liens sent to me.  I am the only 
heir and Regionald Thiboutot is the owner.  Please straighten that part out because he has never 
received any of that paper work.  It came to me, the heir.  If you go to the Registry of Deeds you will 
see this to be the truth that every sewer lien there ever was, was placed on the heir of Richard 
Leavitt.  Secondly, there is no water in the building.  I plan to challenge the fact that the sewer is 
being charged to that building when there is no toilet in there, no piping, and no water coming in.  I 
don’t see how anyone can change someone a sewer bill.  Thank you for your time. 
 
Councilor Henry said how did it get this way because its not the $6,000 that they are saying.  Mr. 
Eldridge said the invoice says that $1,904.39 was for engineering and inspections, $4,278.13 for legal 
services, for a total of $6,182.52.  Councilor Henry asked is that standard practice to bring a lawyer 
in for this.  Mr. Eldridge said for demolition of a building or a building that is considered unsafe, 
yes.  
 
Michelle Turmelle said thank you for letting people speak because I could see that it was very 
important to them because this is a very sensitive issue.  When you are talking about town money, 
you are talking about giving the gentleman his appeals process.  Granted, I don’t know him at all.  I 
have nothing to weigh in on this, other than my opinion after listening to all of this.  We just went 
through a very highly emotional budgetary process and where are you going to come up with that 
extra money to go through the appeals process.  Wouldn’t it be prudent to take our time to dot the 
“I’s” and cross the “T’s” before you take somebody’s home and open us up for a potential law suit?  
I am hearing that there is a bill for over $4,000 for attorney’s fees; I do believe the attorney’s bill is 
supposed to document the billable hours and show them broken down.  Has that been provided to 
him, rather than just the lump sum amount?  I heard the questions asked, but I didn’t hear anything 
coming back from Mr. Eldridge.  I know he’s coming into this late, but these are questions, it’s been 
brought to a public forum, he is here to ask the questions, and it is something that has to be brought 
back.  If he asks a question, respectfully those questions should be answered.  If you open us up to a 
law suit are you all going to sit there and have it come out of your pockets to pay for it since you are 
putting it up to a vote right now, rather than waiting to make sure we have done due diligence on 
this, because I’m not.  I have nothing to weigh in on it, because in two years I won’t be here.  I don’t 
care at this point what you guys do because its getting a little frustrating going through all of this, 
but I just want to know are you confident 100% sitting in your chair as chairman that we have done  
everything, all due diligence on this, before we put it out there and open ourselves up as a town to a 
legal appeals process and further subjecting ourselves to additional attorney fees on top of that and 
we could be paying him a settlement and his attorneys fees on top of that if he wins.  Should we 
look at this a little bit further, she asked.  I think we should be 100% before we go that route. 
 
Councilor Wells said can we answer her with a view of the timeline.  Mrs. Trumelle said I heard the 
timeline, but I heard a lot of questions that weren’t answered.  I don’t need you to repeat back to me, 
I sat there and listened to it all.  Councilor Wells said I am going to go all the way back from the 
beginning.  Mrs. Turmelle said I don’t need you to Councilor Wells, I’ve heard it all.  What I am 



Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 8 September 1, 2009 

Latest Revision as of 9/11/2009 4:11:12 PM 

asking is that he is asking a lot of questions and didn’t hear answers and responses back and as 
taxpayers who are sitting here, I think we have a right to understand, are you 100% confident 
moving forward with this, I’m asking you as the chairman because you are going to put it out there 
as a vote to then proceed, are you 100% sure that legally we have done 100% due diligence on our 
part and we are not going to open ourselves up to anything. 
 
Councilor Bowie said what I can tell you is that I am as 100% sure as I possible can be with the 
information I have in front of me and I am ready to vote.   
 
Councilor Crafts said none of us on this board are attorneys, that’s why we hire attorneys.  They 
know the law and the process and if we get advice back from them, as far as we are concerned, we 
have a credible attorney that is very capable and we have been advised that we have dotted the “I’s” 
and have crossed the “T’s” and so this is the next step in the process.   
 
Councilor Cote said one thing that was said during the budget process this year was that we will 
never ever take someone’s home for taxes.  What are we, two months after that season, and we are 
already taking homes for taxes.  Michelle Turmelle said, but this is not for taxes.  He has already 
stated his taxes had been paid and that has nothing to do with it.  These are additional fees incurred 
for attorneys and engineering so that has nothing to do with it.  Mr. Thiboutot said but they put it 
on my taxes.  Mrs. Turmelle said which you are not supposed to have put on your tax bill, but that’s 
another separate issue.  Ms. Murrillo said correct, the lawyer is wrong.   
 
Councilor Henry said I want to make a comment that I thought it was done really wildly.  It was 
done under (former Town Manager) Curtis Lunt.  I was suspect at the time about how he was going 
to do this.  I felt personally that he was almost doing a vendetta of some sort, but I don’t know that.  
I am just saying that I don’t understand the entire project and us taking it all away.  I know its been 
long standing and sometimes in life things are, but as you said, this is opening us up to something 
that we are not knowing all the appellant facts and what not.   
 
Mrs. Turmelle said I acknowledge that this happened long before hand and it’s something Mr. 
Eldridge now has to complete.  I never once said it had anything to do with Mr. Eldridge.  It’s in his 
lap, at this point, to proceed with.  I’m just saying that you guys all sit there going forward that its 
something you all have to think about because there are things that you have to consider outside 
that and that’s where it will be.  
 
Councilor Cote said the one thing you have to take into consideration is that Mr. Thiboutot’s home 
is Mr. Thiboutot’s home, whether we feel its one thing or another, its still his home.   
 
Councilor Mason said, Mr. Thiboutot, what is your intent for that building?  To live in it someday?  
Mr. Thiboutot said, yes I do.   
 
Councilor Mason said I just want to know why it’s gone into disrepair and if your intent is to live in 
it I would expect that you would have been working on it bit by bit and we haven’t seen that. 
 
Mr. Thiboutot said I can answer that.  First off, I stopped work because we were waiting for the 
drainage to be put in.  The town had put a drain in and then after they had put the drain in that took 
awhile I got this bill in 2008 saying things about the taxes that they were going to put on so I 
disputed it.  I don’t want to put money into this while I’m trying to fight something else and 
worrying about this $6,000, $7,000, $8,500 bill when I can’t get an answer from somebody or an 
itemized bill that I need to know what I am doing here before I go trying to put every last penny 
that I have into this home and then have this happen right here.  After I put all this money into it, is 
somebody going to try and take it?   
 
Councilor Mason said according to the timeline we have this was considered a dangerous building 
back in 2005.   Mr. Thiboutot said yes, and it was fixed.  In 2006 this was settled and done.   



Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 9 September 1, 2009 

Latest Revision as of 9/11/2009 4:11:12 PM 

 
Councilor Mason said and it deteriorated after that.  Mr. Thiboutot said no, vandalism has 
happened.  The only thing that they say is that I should have a fence around it.  I can’t afford to put 
a fence around my property for a construction site.  Nobody else does in this town.  Like I said 
earlier, I have pictures of the church on Main Street standing there free for everybody to run around 
there and there are construction sites all over this town and I have never seen a fence around any of 
them and this is what they are basing my dangerous building on is,”I don’t have a fence there so kids 
can come in and out of my home.”  In order for somebody to go into that home they have to remove 
something to get in there and that’s how they are saying that my building is dangerous.  Like I said, 
that’s how I feel that I am being singled out in this whole thing.  That’s why I am very sketchy on 
doing what I am doing because I’m very nervous about how this has all played out.   
 
Councilor Henry said is there a way for you to have a tenant in there that is paying you something.  
Councilor Bowie said there is no furnace and there are no floors.    
 
Mr. Thiboutot said there are floors and a water heater is going in there.  He pointed out that the 
building was set down on the foundation and bolted and that as far as he knew in 2005 he had fixed 
it and that everything was okay, but since then vandalism put it back into this repair.  He said I am 
nervous to put money into it and I don’t dare move forward without an itemized bill knowing how 
all this cost occurred to me and that’s what I have been looking for all the time.   
 
Mr. Eldridge said in April 2006 you were sent an itemized bill by the prior Town Manager outlining 
all the expenses.   
 
Mr. Thiboutot said and how many hours were involved in that.  Mr. Eldridge said that’s an itemized 
bill and if you want the number of hours I would have to go back and look at the billable hours.  Mr. 
Thiboutot said this is the things that I have been asking for.  Mr. Eldridge replied, no, you have not. 
Mr. Thiboutot said, yes I have.  I sent you a notice of dispute on it. 
 
Councilor Crafts said so if you get an itemized bill and the breakdown on that bill, what’s that going 
to do for you.   
 
Mr. Thiboutot said so I can get something to my attorney to show him what is going on here.  I don’t 
understand how you can continue to go over and over the same thing and hire this engineer on four 
different occasions to say the same exact thing, when you guys didn’t even let me have enough time 
to finish the building before you hired him again and you tried to get these costs up so high that I 
had to fail.  That’s what you have been doing.   
 
Councilor Crafts said we feel that we have to cross the “T’s” and dot the “I’s” and that’s why we 
hired the engineer.  Mr. Thiboutot said but isn’t four times a bit of an overkill.  Councilor Crafts said 
today you have to be so careful, otherwise, so you don’t end up in these situations that we are in 
now when you do everything by the book.   
 
Mr. Thibotout said don’t we have our own engineer?  Councilor Crafts said, yes we do.  Mr. 
Thibotout said then why didn’t we use him?  Councilor Crafts said because that would be a conflict 
of interest.   
 
Mr. Thiboutot said what about codes.  Councilor Crafts said we have codes and he enforced it.  
That’s why we are here today.  When it comes to a legal action, you can’t have conflict because then 
you would be telling us tonight that we have a conflict; if we hired our own Lisbon employee to go 
over there and do the engineering work so we hired an outside source.   
 
Mr. Thiboutot said I can’t ask this man questions when he comes down or anything.  Councilor 
Crafts said I am ready to vote to move this forward and you have the chance within 30 days to 
appeal it.  Mr. Thiboutot said, I will.  



Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 10 September 1, 2009 

Latest Revision as of 9/11/2009 4:11:12 PM 

 
Councilor Crafts said that’s fine.  I think that’s very fair.  Again, you will have an opportunity again 
after all these years to argue your case at an appeal.  That’s where I am at and that’s where you are 
at.  This isn’t the end of it.  We are not getting prices to demolish your building.  We are giving you 
the 30 day notice to appeal it.   
 
Mr. Thiboutot said do you think it’s fair when there are other buildings under construction without 
a fence around them.   
 
Councilor Crafts said you are talking about Main Street, and pointed out that they live there and 
that they can watch it and they can send the kids away.  This is not the same thing. 
 
Councilor Larochelle said this goes back, even Mr. Cote mentioned, when we first got on this year 
that there are a lot of situations in town that we need to address.  There is no question about that as 
you have alluded to.  One of the things that we see is that this goes back a long time so it’s really 
hard to move forward on the other ones if there are no pending cases to move forward with.  You 
mentioned about possibly taking the information and forwarding it to your attorney.  Since 2006 
have you had your attorney look at any of this information and has he advised you to maybe move 
forward and to come to the town to speak about it.  It seems that looking back to 2006 that if there 
were some serious disputes about some information the best thing if you do have is legal 
representation to move forward and come through and hopefully move forward beyond this point.  
It seems that looking at this as a Councilor there is quite a timeline coming through and I am not 
disputing any of the facts that you have or the facts that we have because this is what we have to 
work with.  I agree with Councilor Crafts that everybody realizes that there is a 30 day process that 
probably would bring all this to light.   
 
Mr. Thiboutot said what timeline are you talking about because in 2006 this was finished and done.  
I was done in 2006.  I didn’t receive anything until just the other day in the mail that the engineer 
had showed up in January so everything was all done and all of a sudden I get this from out of 
nowhere.  I spoke with the Town Manager and we met at my house in December.  As a matter of 
fact, I showed him how the house was sitting on the foundation and that it was lag bolted down, 
which the engineer says that it’s still standing, which I don’t understand.   
 
Councilor Larochelle said just going back this is going on two years and I do remember we were 
dealing with something, a year or so ago, in code enforcement about some concerns and I believe at 
that point in time the owners would have been notified, also.  Just talking about what we have seen, 
again, hopefully, if nothing else we need to move forward with some of the claims that we have.  
We do have a code enforcer and they are trying to do what they can to actually help the town with 
some of the buildings that they feel are a concern.  Hopefully, if nothing else, moving forward 
brings everything to a head so it will be solved, taken care of, or resolved, however that may be.  It 
sounds like there is already legal taking care of on both sides so I assume that all of the information 
will come to the front and there won’t be any information that’s been left out.  When looking at 
conspiracy or something happening, when it comes to legal, that’s one thing we would rather sort 
out.  Unfortunately, if we do nothing we are not solving anything either and that’s one of the 
downfalls of not moving forward.   
 
Mr. Thiboutot said I haven’t been standing with my hands in my pockets.  I have sent letters here to 
try and get things moving and I can’t get a response from anybody.   
 
Councilor Larochelle said unfortunately a lot of the information that we have we don’t see those 
letters unless they were documented or registered mail with the file.  We are basically just receiving 
what information we have from our lawyer so maybe we could touch bases with our lawyer who is 
here tonight before we move forward.   
 



Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 11 September 1, 2009 

Latest Revision as of 9/11/2009 4:11:12 PM 

 Mr. Thiboutot said I have been trying to get things to move, but I can’t get anything done until I get 
some information back about his whole bill and when I come down to look at my taxes, on my taxes 
it says that I owe $8,000 and some odd dollars and I want an itemized bill of what I am having to 
pay.   
 
Councilor Larochelle said part of that bill at least $6,000, has been there since 2006.  It isn’t just 
something that you found out recently, right?  Mr. Thiboutot said, no, I didn’t find that out until 
they sent me a letter in 2008 of $6,000 and some odd dollars and then it went from that to $8,000.   
 
Councilor Larochelle said the letter that we have seen goes back to 2006 and, again, I would only 
assume that the letter you actually had goes back to 2006.  Again, that’s the information that we are 
going by and I am not sure if there was any documentation about you signing it.  Again, we are just 
looking at the information that we have.  Maybe it would be good for Attorney Therriault to bring 
us up to speed before we vote. 
 
Attorney Therriault said at this point there is nothing more that staff can do. It’s up to you folks as 
to how you want to deal with it from this point forward.   
 
Dorothy Fitzgerald said from what I am hearing is that there is a lot of vandalism going on at that 
building and this is right on Village Street right next to the Fire Station.  We have how many police 
officers in town and there are at least two of them patrolling every shift and I am just wondering if 
there is so much vandalism going on, why aren’t the police checking this building out.  If kids are 
getting into it and vandalizing it, its right there on Village Street, so why aren’t the police checking 
this out.  If you put a fence around it, it’s all the more reason for the kids to hide behind it.  Fences 
do not keep the kids out.    
 
Councilor Bowie said we have an order before us and we have a motion and a second, any further 
discussion from Council.   
 
Councilor Larochelle said just to make sure we understand the process before we move on, if we 
vote on this he has 30 days to appeal; as far as the demolition, it doesn’t put a timeline on 
demolition or anything like that, that should just bring that information to light, which is the next 
step in the legal process.  Councilor Bowie said we can’t do a thing for 30 days from the time we 
accept this order.  Councilor Larochelle said then from that point in time we ensure the legal process 
has, or due process at that time, got all these issues straightened out.   
 
Councilor Bowie said if there is an appeal, and it goes forward that could take a month or two years.  
We don’t know how long that’s going to take.  Councilor Bowie asked for a roll call vote.  
 
Vote By Roll Call - Yeas:  Councilor Wells, Bowie, Larochelle, Mason, and Crafts.  Nays:  Cote 
and Henry.  Order Passed - Vote 5-2. 
 

 
ADOPT AMENDED SCHOOL WARRANT 

 
VOTE (2009-128A) Councilor Cote, seconded by Councilor Crafts moved to adopt Articles 1 
through 10 and 15 through 17 as follows:  

ARTICLE 1: 
 
To see what sum the Council will authorize the Lisbon School Department to expend 
for Student and Staff Support (Guidance, Health, Library, Improvement of Instruction, 
Curriculum Coordinator, Technology System Administrator, Technology Funds and 
Curriculum Funds).  Amount: $1,010,289 
 



Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 12 September 1, 2009 

Latest Revision as of 9/11/2009 4:11:12 PM 

ARTICLE 2: 
 
To see what sum the Council will authorize the Lisbon School Department to expend 
for System Administration (School Committee and Superintendent).  Amount: 
$384,124 
 

ARTICLE 3: 
 
To see what sum the Council will authorize the Lisbon School Department to expend 
for School Administration (Principals).  Amount: $775,906 
 

ARTICLE 4: 
 
To see what sum the Council will authorize the Lisbon School Department to expend 
for Facilities Maintenance (Operation & Maintenance).  Amount:  $1,519,483 
 

ARTICLE 5: 
 
To see what sum the Council will authorize the Lisbon School Department to expend 
for Transportation and Buses.  Amount:  $641,039 
 

ARTICLE 6: 
 
To see what sum the Council will authorize the Lisbon School Department to expend 
for All Other Expenditures (School Nutrition).  Amount:  $306,537 
 

ARTICLE 7: 
 
To see what sum the Council will authorize the Lisbon School Department to expend 
for Debt Service and Other Commitments.  Amount: $1,120,418 
 

ARTICLE 8: 
 
To see what sum the Council will authorize the Lisbon School Department to expend 
for Regular Instruction (Elementary and Secondary).  Amount:  $6,082,923 
 

ARTICLE 9: 
 
To see what sum the Council will authorize the Lisbon School Department to expend 
for Special Education (SPED and Gifted & Talented).  Amount: $2,042,393 
 

ARTICLE 10: 
 
To see what sum the Council will authorize the Lisbon School Department to expend 
for Other Instruction (Co-Curricular). Amount:  $329,407 
 

ARTICLE 15: 
 
To see if the Council will authorize the Lisbon School Department to appropriate 
$128,892 for Adult Education and raise $83,438 as the local share; with authorization to 
expend any additional, incidental, or miscellaneous receipts in the interest and for the 
well-being of the adult education program.  
 
 
 



Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 13 September 1, 2009 

Latest Revision as of 9/11/2009 4:11:12 PM 

ARTICLE 16: 
 
To see what sum the Council will authorize the Lisbon School Department to expend 
for Adult Education.  Amount:  $143,830 
 

ARTICLE 17: 
 
In addition to amounts approved in the preceding articles, shall the Council authorize 
the School Committee to expend federal stabilization funds and such other sums as 
may be received from federal or state grants or programs or other sources during the 
fiscal year for school purposes, provided that such grants, programs or other sources 
do not require the expenditure of other funds not previously appropriated? 
 
Note: It is currently estimated that the School Committee will receive $ $215,640 in federal 
stabilization funds, which are included in the expenditures authorized by this article. 

 
Order passed – Vote 7-0. 
 
 
VOTE (2009-128B) Councilor Larochelle, seconded by Councilor Crafts moved to approve 
$3,815,630 for Article 11.   

ARTICLE 11: 
 
To see what sum the Council will authorize the Lisbon School Department to 
appropriate for the total cost of funding public education from kindergarten to grade 
12 as described in the Essential Programs and Services Funding Act (Recommend 
$12,695,309) and to see what sum the council will raise as the town’s contribution to 
the total cost of funding public education from kindergarten to grade 12 as described 
in the Essential Programs and Services Funding Act in accordance with the Maine 
Revised Statutes, Title 20-A, section 15688. 
 
“Explanation:  The Town’s contribution to the total cost of funding public education from 
kindergarten to grade 12 as described in the Essential Programs and Services Funding Act is 
the amount of money determined by state law to be the minimum amount that a municipality 
must raise in order to receive the full amount of state dollars.” 

 
Order passed – Vote 7-0. 
 
 
VOTE (2009-128C) Councilor Larochelle, seconded by Councilor Cote moved to approve 
$81,085 for Article 12.   

ARTICLE 12: 
 
To see what sum the Council will authorize the Lisbon School Department to raise and 
appropriate for the annual payments on debt service previously approved by the 
legislative body for non-state-funded school construction projects, non-state-funded 
portions of school construction projects and minor capital projects in addition to the 
funds appropriated as the local share of the Council will authorize the Lisbon School 
Department unit’s contribution to the total cost of funding public education from 
kindergarten to grade 12.  
 
“Explanation: Non-state-funded debt service is the amount of money needed for the annual 
payments on the municipality/district long-term debt for major capital school construction 
projects and minor capital renovation projects that is not approved for state subsidy.  The 
bonding of this long-term debt was previously approved by the voters or other legislative body.” 



Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 14 September 1, 2009 

Latest Revision as of 9/11/2009 4:11:12 PM 

 
Order passed – Vote 7-0. 
 
 
VOTE (2009-128D) Councilor Cote, seconded by Councilor Henry moved to approve $1,017,858 
for Article 13.   

ARTICLE 13: 
 
To see what sum the Council will authorize the Lisbon School Department to raise and 
appropriate for in additional local funds (recommend $1,017,858), which exceeds the 
State’s Essential Programs and Services allocation model by $735,639 as required to 
fund the budget recommended by the school committee.   
 
The school committee recommends $1,017,858 for additional local funds and gives the 
following reasons for exceeding the State’s Essential Programs and Services funding 
model by $735,639. 
 
The Essential Programs and Services (EPS) model does not fund the total cost of the 
Lisbon School Department’s annual budget therefore the School Department has used 
$468,907 from the Undesignated Fund to help lower the impact to the Town of Lisbon.  
The Lisbon School Department is above EPS by $735,639 because of the lowering of 
the subsidy for System Administration, Operations & Maintenance, Special Education, 
and Transportation plus the additional costs for Co-Curricular and Salaries. 
 
Explanation:  The additional local funds are those locally raised funds over and above the school 
administrative unit’s local contribution to the total cost of funding public education from 
kindergarten to grade 12 as described in the Essential Programs and Services Funding Act and 
local amounts raised for the annual payment on non-state funded debt service that will help 
achieve the Lisbon School Department's budget for educational programs. 

 
 
Order passed – Vote 5-2.  (Against: Mason and Wells) 
 
 
VOTE (2009-128E) Councilor Larochelle, seconded by Councilor Crafts moved to approve 
$14,212,519 for Article 14.   

ARTICLE 14: 
 
To see what sum the Council will authorize the Lisbon School Committee to expend 
for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2009 and ending June 30, 2010 from the Town’s 
contribution to the total cost of funding public education from kindergarten to grade 
12 as described in the Essential Programs and Services Funding Act, non-state-funded 
school construction projects, additional local funds for school purposes under the 
Maine Revised Statutes, Title 20-A, section 15690, unexpended balances, tuition 
receipts, state subsidy and other receipts for the support of schools. 

 
Order passed – Vote 7-0. 

 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

A. ROUTE 9 CONSTRUCTION - WATER DISCUSSION 
 
Mr. Eldridge said we have had meetings and discussions back and forth with MDOT.  We had a 
preconstruction meeting last week.  Prior to that we met with the Water Department and all 



Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 15 September 1, 2009 

Latest Revision as of 9/11/2009 4:11:12 PM 

interested parties sat down and discussed with the Council what the Water Department thought we 
should be looking at.  Our attorney met with the MDOT attorney this past Monday about who is 
responsible for paying what and that is still an ongoing discussion.  This is something that we will 
have to act on very quickly so MDOT can fit it into their contract with K & K for supplemental work.  
This part of the project can’t fit into the recovery act funding part of it. 
 
Mr. Leighton said the biggest thing we discussed with MDOT was that obviously this part of the 
project will end up being bonded.  I am not sure what the deadline is for the November ballot.  The 
Council will need to come up with a game plan between now and then; that’s why it’s on the 
agenda because there is a real sense of urgency if we are going to move forward to get the funding 
approval necessary in order for the project to take place.  We can realize savings by having K & K do 
the work.  MDOT said we will start to see work out on Route 9 right after Labor Day.  Their 
intention is to focus on the Barker Brook Bridge end of the project.  They don’t intend to rip up any 
pavement between now and winter.  We will see tree clearing, utility work, possibly some drainage 
work, and the big deal will be the new bridge over Barker Brook.  MDOT indicated this water 
project would definitely fit into their schedule and that they can accommodate laying the water line.   
The contractor has given us every indication that they are willing to work with us and the Water 
Department to make sure that we can provide safe drinking water for a cluster of homes that really 
need it.  
 
Mr. Eldridge said we will put this on the agenda for the 15th so in between that the Water 
Commissioners and the Council need to set up a meeting so that on the 15th you can have 
discussions about what you want to do.  William Bauer said I can meet on Tuesday, but I can’t 
speak for the others.  Councilor Bowie said can you check with them to see if we can meet next 
Tuesday.  Mr. Bauer said we, also, want to meet as soon as possible.  Mr. Eldridge said why don’t 
we set the date for September 8th at 6:00 PM so we can post it if you think that’s a workable date.  
Councilor Bowie said let’s tentatively go with that and if something comes up and we can’t then we 
can move it to a Wednesday.   
 
Councilor Larochelle said Mr. Bauer do you have the numbers for how much it will cost to run the 
water line from Route 196 to Upland.  Has that been figured out or not.  Mr. Bauer said I believe Mr. 
Adams furnished you with a price and I don’t remember what the price was.  I know when talking 
to K & K that they had come up with a price.  I know Mr. Adams met today with Dirigo Engineering 
who originally put the project together.  The original plan went from Barker Brook down to Wing 
Street and now they have added a piece from Wing Street down to Route 196 so I am not sure what 
that will entail.  I am assuming that when Mr. Adams talked to K & K that they were talking about 
doing the whole thing. 
 
Mr. Eldridge said they gave us a per linier foot cost, which was basically half the cost of what it 
would cost us if we started this from scratch and had to do all the ground work.  Where the problem 
lies still is between MDOT, the town, and the Water Department deciding what percentage who is 
responsible for and how that is going to close that gap.  That hasn’t been finalized, but our attorney 
is meeting with their attorney so, hopefully, we can get some discussion going by the 8th.     
 
Mr. Bauer said first, the people of this community need to understand that it will require a rate 
increase, and secondly, it will require the approval of a bond.  Council is fully aware that the Water 
Department can not borrow any money at all without the Council’s permission.   
 
Mr. Bauer said there is a problem with low water pressure at the intersection of Route 9 and Upland 
Road and it would require a booster pump and there are two ways to address that.  One is to install 
a booster pump along Upland Road and then you would have to install another pump to decrease 
the pressure further down, maybe on Wing Street, the other way is for every home to have their 
own booster and that can be done easily, too.  Mr. Eldridge said who is paying for what has yet to 
be decided.  Mr. Bauer said we are eligible for a construction loan on this too.  Money could be 
borrowed ahead of time from the drinking water program prior to issuing the bond.  Mr. Eldridge 



Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 16 September 1, 2009 

Latest Revision as of 9/11/2009 4:11:12 PM 

said we need to explore what grants are available and I know there are programs out there for 
emergencies like this.   You are going to have to fund this before the bond bank gives approval 
because that won’t happen until you go to the bond bank next spring.   
 
Councilor Larochelle said this water project about going up Route 9 has been talked about for a long 
time and it is part of the future projects that you wanted to do.  It’s just that the opportunity may be 
the best now then it ever will be.   
 
Mr. Bauer said it’s a known fact that the water producing wells are in Lisbon and probably 50-60% 
of the consumption is in Lisbon Falls.  Right now we don’t have a well in Lisbon Falls that produces 
enough water to provide water to the customers of Lisbon Falls alone so we have got to find a way, 
and we have known this, of getting water down from the Lisbon area to Lisbon Falls.  It was my 
opinion that when the Lisbon Community School was built there should have been a line put down 
what is called the Old Paper Mill Road, but the School Department didn’t want to do the septic at 
the time and it just didn’t happen.  The other way was to go down the power line in back of the 
school and coming out across from Wing Street, but that does nothing for the people along that area 
that have a problem with their water.  This leaves us with Upland Road and down Route 9.  
Personally, I believe that future expansion of the community will go out in the area towards the 
Bowdoinham Road from Upland Road.  He said I agree with what Mr. Eldridge said that there are 
three pies here and who is going to pay for what. 
 
Mr. Leighton said if we can’t get this water project funded there are still nine to ten wells that need 
to be addressed on the Route 9 project.  The cost we heard for a well and treatment for the next 
twenty years would be around $30,000 to $50,000 so one way or another someone will have to pay 
for that and we will let the attorneys figure out who pays for what, but it would be in the best 
interest of the community to extend the water line out Route 9 and Upland Road so this needs to be 
voted on in November.   
 

B. TOWN MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
Mr. Eldridge said the MMA Convention is coming up so let Mrs. Durisko know if you plan to 
attend.  The MDOT preconstruction meeting went well and was well attended by Lisbon and 
Sabattus residents.  There are very few applicants applying for the Board of Assessment Review and 
we are three applicants shy of filling that committee.   A lobbying group out of Washington is 
pushing us real hard to have us hire them to secure federal funding, but you pay dearly for that so 
look it over and get back to me on what your thoughts are.  I have worked with groups like this and 
they are very good at what they do and they are usually quite successful.  I don’t know with the 
economy and Washington if that could have changed, but we also have our representatives and 
their staff, which I have worked with in the past as well.   I will be gone for a few days attending the 
ICMA Conference and Cathy Ricker will be in charge until the 16th.   
 
 

AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION - NONE 
 

APPOINTMENTS 
 

CONSERVATION COMMISSION 
(2 Alternate Positions) 

 
VOTE (2009-129) Councilor Larochelle, seconded by Councilor Cote moved to appoint Justin 
Blouin and Luke Lunt to the Conservation Commission.  Order passed – Vote 7-0. 

APPEALS BOARD 
(2 Regular Positions) 



Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 17 September 1, 2009 

Latest Revision as of 9/11/2009 4:11:12 PM 

 
VOTE (2009-130) Councilor Larochelle, seconded by Councilor Cote moved to appoint Karen 
Paradis and Donald Fellows to the Appeals Board.  Order passed – Vote 6-0. 

 
 

COUNCILOR COMMUNICATIONS 
 

Councilor Cote said first I want to bring up that back a couple of meetings ago we had a young lady 
here complaining about her water and she was not being able to flush her toilet and she had come in 
with a bucket and made quite a ruckus.  I just wanted to bring it to the attention of everybody that 
Mr. Bauer took time out of his busy schedule and went to her home and found that her toilet was 
shut off.   He turned the valve on and the problem was solved.  I just want to thank Mr. Bauer for 
doing that.   
 
Councilor Cote said another thing I wanted to bring up was that in a meeting earlier this evening 
one of the residents of the town was complaining about jay breaks on these big trucks going down 
Route 9.  It’s just terrible.  They crest the hill at my home and they start down the hill and some of 
these trucks run late at night and they run their jay breaks all the way to the foot of the hill and 
when they go by these peoples homes its just very annoying.  We would like to have a no jay break 
sign put on Route 9 and bring this to a discussion if you could Councilor Bowie. 
 
Councilor Cote said another thing I wanted to bring up was that I received a letter from the Town 
Manager about the sign when you come into town.  It has business names on it and I guess at one 
time we charged something for putting your business name on it.  Are we going to open that up for 
discussion and bring that up at a later date?  Councilor Crafts said that’s been resolved.   
 
Councilor Bowie said we are not going to charge a fee.  I believe when it originally started a number 
of years ago businesses were solicited and if they wanted to have a sign made and posted there was 
a fee for that.   
 
Councilor Cote said wouldn’t it be good business sense to put those business names on that sign for 
them since we are spending money for revitalization and on economic development ideas.  This 
would be one of those things that I think we should be doing.   
 
Councilor Larochelle said I remember when the original discussion came through for these, 
unfortunately, when you have a lot of businesses you are limited on size and space,  and one of the 
original intents for that was, number one, to advertise for the businesses and secondly, I don’t know 
if you noticed but there are two types of signs, the one the Department of Transportation has that 
when you come up to an intersection it tells you where a business is located, unfortunately, if you 
come down the hill from Crafts if you actually had a business sign for every business on Main Street 
it would look like you would be going down the road with a bunch of different labels.  Initially they 
were hoping to put in a nice neat sign, keep it contained so businesses could advertise without 
having a bunch of MDOT road signs that they put up and I thought that was a pretty good idea.  I 
was originally concerned about the idea that businesses could actually advertise on each sign.  I 
think it was a great step to move in both directions.  It needs to be worked with a little bit more and 
I’m glad the discussions have come up about the signs because I think more needs to be added to it.  
I don’t know in what form that needs to be done.   The more we do the better we are and the idea of 
keeping it clean and neat on one sign is a lot better than having the original MDOT signs 
everywhere.   
 
Dot Fitzgerald said the old Merchants Association got Dan Feeney to get the job done for us and if 
we wanted our business advertised on the sign we paid for our own advertising space.  I can’t 
remember whether we were supposed to be billed every year thereafter or not.  I don’t have my 



Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 18 September 1, 2009 

Latest Revision as of 9/11/2009 4:11:12 PM 

business anymore and someone else has that space now.  I think it’s a great idea and a nice looking 
sign. 
 
Councilor Cote said I have one final item that is back in the budget season we had discussed  
moving the Assistant Code Enforcement position to a full time Code Enforcement position.  Did that 
ever occur?  Mr. Eldridge said yes.  Councilor Cote said and the position was compensated.  Mr. 
Eldridge said no.  Councilor Cote said why was it not compensated.  Mr. Eldridge said because 
nobody was compensated for any change in position.  Nobody got raises this year.  Councilor Bowie 
said it was voted for a change, not for an increase.  Councilor Cote said its all here in the minutes, 
the increase was put down here and we voted on that increase.  Mr. Eldridge said I didn’t interpret 
it that way nobody was getting raises throughout the departments and municipal staff.  The 
consensus was that nobody was getting raises and that we would look at it in the coming year to see 
where we were in the economy.  I know you have it there.  I will have to go back and look at the 
minutes.  
 
Councilor Henry said it has been proven that if people continually see your name on a sign out 
there that you take notice and that you are probably going to want to go there.  If you are looking to 
buy a nice car you are going to think about Crafts Auto or the business you saw on the sign and 
think I should go there and the same with Fern’s.  I notice who is on the sign and who is off now.  It 
becomes sort of like the temperature of the town so having those signs are a great thing.  I think if 
businesses are willing to pay at least something to keep them up it would be important.   
 
Councilor Henry said the other thing I would like to say is that we need more volunteers this year 
for the Booster Club.  I am looking for volunteers to work with me in the snack shack at the High 
School.  Robin Tupper said the website is www.greyhoundboosters.com and follow the link to the 
local sports schedule as well as the snack shack calendar.  You can sign up for the snack shack on 
the spaces in the calendar.  Councilor Henry said the soccer team could really use some help so be a 
volunteer.  While you are out there you can watch the games, too.      
 
Councilor Larochelle said as Councilors the information is pretty much laid out for us, 
unfortunately, a lot of the times we hear of different sides of the stories and conspiracies, but you 
know some decisions we make actually bring forth a lot of the truth and, hopefully, if nothing else 
we will bring it to a head and in some cases things go back years and years and years so I think its 
time to get all the facts on the table and get it taken care of.  
 
Councilor Larochelle said I didn’t get a chance to attend the concert, but everyone’s seen the signs.  
A couple of people told me that there was a really good turnout and it went over really well so 
thank you to those for putting the effort out there, it was really one of those amazing things and its 
going to be an ongoing event, I believe.   
 
Councilor Mason said part of the revitalization effort is to start to have community events.  I had 
several people call me regarding the turnout and there was a really good turnout.  People really 
liked the idea of the concert and we really liked the idea that we were really bringing the 
community together and that’s what our intent is as part of the revitalization committee to have 
these seasonal type things, gatherings, to encourage people get out and get to know one another.  
When you get to know one another you start networking in a lot of different ways.  It can help our 
schools, our revitalization efforts, our businesses, and that’s what we are trying to do.  We have 
branched off into a couple of different areas right now, because of our downtown network 
community we have some things happening with that and we have contacted a few people who 
want to get involved.  You can contact me or Ms. Bradley for any of that information.  It is important 
to hold these types of events and that’s what we are trying to do.  We are working on a Harvest 
Festival now that used to be in October called the Oktoberfest and it used to be up at Law’s Nursery 
on Route 9.  I never attended it myself, but I heard a lot of people enjoyed it so we are doing a little 
spin off from that and things are moving forward. 
 



Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 19 September 1, 2009 

Latest Revision as of 9/11/2009 4:11:12 PM 

EXECUTIVE SESSION – NONE 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
VOTE (2009-133) Councilor Larochelle, seconded by Councilor Crafts moved to adjourn at 9:05 
PM.  Order passed - Vote 6-0. 

 
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 

__________________________________ 
Twila D. Lycette, Council Secretary 

Town Clerk, Lifetime CCM 
 


